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B-3454 - B-3462 c.1835-1875 
1105-1137 S. Charles St. (East side) 
Baltimore, Md. 
Private access 

The east side of the 1100 block of S. Charles St. is improved by 
several different types of houses, all of which currently serve a combined 
residential/commercial function. The earliest surviving houses on the block, 
those at 1131-1137 S. Charles St., are a group of late Federal style, two and 
a half story, two bay wide brick houses, built in the late 1830's by two 
different builders. To the north of this early group, at 1129 S. Charles St., 
is a two story plus attic, two bay wide brick house, built in the early 1850's. 
The remainder of the block is improved by three story, two bay wide brick houses 
with shed roofs and bracketed cornices, some of which (1115-1117 and 1123 S. Charles 
St.) were originally built in the 1850's with gable roofs and later remodeled, 
and some of which (1105, 1125, 1127 S. Charles St.) were built in the 1870's 
in their present form. 
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This pair of two story, two bay brick houses with gable roofs and front 
and rear roof dormer windows was built in the 1830's and formed part of a group 
of such houses extending along this side of Charles St. 1135 Charles St. has 
been covered with formstone and the first floor areas of both houses have been 
converted into store-fronts. , 

The houses are two and a half stories in height, 1135 is 13' wide, 1137 is 
14' wide, and both occupy lots 52' deep. Each house is two rooms deep. 1137 
Charles St. has a two story high, four bay deep rear addition running back 
along West St. The houses are constructed in common bond but 1135 Charles St. 
has been covered with formstone. The steeply pitched gable roofs have two-tier 
brick cornices and a single front and rear roof dormer window apiece. Each house 
has a double rectangular chimney located on the north side of the rear roof gable. 

The second story window openings at 1137 Charles St. have no lintels and wood 
sills. The window openings on the West St. facade have segmentally arched brick 
lintels with solid wood tympanums and rustic stone sills. All of the window 
openings at 1137 Charles St. are filled with 2/2 double hung sash. At 1135 Char. 
the original treatment of the lintels has been hidden by the formstone covering, 
but it is apparent that the lintels are flat. The window openings are filled with 
modern 1/1 sash. The first floor areas of both houses have been converted into 
store-fronts. At 1135 Charles St. a glass and panel door set beneath a single 
light transom bordered by dentil carvings, is located in the northernmost bay, 
flanked by a wide plate glass shop window set flush with the facade. At 1137 
Charles St. there is a centrally located flush metal door flanked by two three-
sided projecting shop windows,-'the entire facades of which have been covered with 
stucco. A wooden cornice extends across the entire width of the store-front area 
and back along West St. for several feet. It consists of a deeply projecting crown 
molding decorated with a row of cut-work scallops set above panels decorated with 
scroll-sawed motifs and bordered by a row of dentil carvings. Seven plain brackets 
across the Charles St. facade, and two brackets around the West St. corner, support 
the cornice and connect it to a plain wood freize area. Both entrances are 
reached by one stone step. 

*The roof of 1135 Charles St. is covered with tarpaper and retains its original 
wooden snowguard. The roof of 1137 Charles St. is covered with asphalt shingles. 
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See under 1131 S. Charles St. 

This pair of houses, along with 1133 S. Charles St., were built by George Gardner, 
a wheelwright, who lived here until his death in 1843. Gardner's son-in-law, Francis 
Livingston, then operated a hat shop at this location in the late 1840's and early 
1850's, apparently having his shop at 1137 S. Charles and living at 1135 S. Charles.-'-

Baltimore City Land Records, Liber TK 252, Folio 41; Baltimore City Directory, 1840-1, 
1842, 1845, 1855-56 
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